

Minutes of the Public Board
Held on 27 January 2022 12.00pm
Via MS Teams

	Chair:
	
	

	Charles Janczewski
	CJ
	UHB Chair

	Present:
	
	

	Ceri Phillips
	CP
	Vice Chair

	Fiona Jenkins
	FJ
	Executive Director of Therapies & Healthcare Sciences

	Rachel Gidman
	RG
	Executive Director of People and Culture.

	Abigail Harris
	AH
	Deputy Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director of Strategic Planning

	Fiona Kinghorn
	FK
	Executive Director of Public Health

	Mike Jones
	MJ
	Independent Member – Trade Unions

	Ruth Walker
	RW
	Executive Director of Nursing

	Catherine Phillips
	CP
	Executive Director of Finance

	Caroline Bird
	CB
	Interim Chief Operating Officer

	Akmal Hanuk
	AH
	Independent Member for Community

	Susan Elsmore
	SE
	Independent Member for Local Authority

	Gary Baxter
	GB
	Independent Member for University

	Sara Moseley
	SM
	Independent Member for Third Sector

	John Union
	JU
	Independent Member for Finance

	Michael Imperato
	MI
	Independent Member for Legal

	Rhian Thomas 
	RT
	Independent Member - Capital and Estates

	David Edwards
	DE
	Independent Member - ICT

	In Attendance:
	
	

	Nicola Foreman
	NF
	Director of Corporate Governance

	David Thomas
	DT
	Director of Digital Health & Intelligence

	Ian Virgil
	IV
	Head of Internal Audit

	Stephen Allen 
	SA
	Community Health Council – Chair

	Sam Austin
	SA
	Deputy Chief Executive, Llamau

	David Thomas
	DT
	Director of Digital Health & Intelligence

	Chris Turner 
	CT
	Chair of the Emergency Ambulance Service Committee

	Stephen Harrhy
	SH
	Chief Ambulance Services Commissioner

	Lance Carver
	LC
	Director of Social Service, Vale of Glamorgan Council

	Jason Roberts
	JR
	Deputy Executive Nurse Director 

	Stephen Harrhy
	SH
	Chief Ambulance Services Commissioner

	Richard Baxter
	RB
	Emergency Ambulance Services Committee

	Carys Fox 
	CF
	Divisional Nurse for the Specialist Services

	Jonathan Pritchard
	JP
	[bookmark: _GoBack]Assistant Director of Workforce Resourcing

	Observers:
	
	

	Joanne Brandon
	JB
	Director of Communications

	Marcia Donovan
	MD
	Head of Corporate Governance

	Francis Meurig
	FM
	Graduate Trainee

	Hannah Stevenson
	HS
	Graduate Trainee

	Secretariat:
	
	

	Nathan Saunders
	NS
	Senior Corporate Governance Officer

	Apologies:
	
	

	Stuart Walker
	SW
	Interim Chief Executive Officer

	Meriel Jenney
	MJ
	Interim Executive Medical Director





	Item No
	Agenda Item
	Action

	UHB 22/01/001
	Welcome & Introductions
The University Health Board Chair (UHB Chair) welcomed all to the Board meeting in English and in Welsh. 

	

	UHB 22/01/002
	Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absences were noted.

	

	UHB 22/01/003
	Declarations of Interest

Sara Moseley declared an interest as a member of the General Medical Council (GMC).

Fiona Jenkins declared an interest in relation to her joint role as the Interim Executive Director for Therapies Health Science for Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB.

Susan Elsmore declared an interest in relation to her role as the Cabinet Member for Social Care, Health and Well-being at Cardiff Council.

The Deputy Chief Executive Officer (DCEO) advised the Board that she was an Independent Member for the Social Care Wales Board and declared an interest.

The Board resolved that:

a) Save for Declarations of Interest noted above, no further Declarations of Interest were noted. 

	

	UHB 22/01/004
	Minutes of the Public Board Meeting held on 16 December 2021

The minutes of the Public Board Meeting held on 16 December 2021 were reviewed for accuracy and matters arising.

The Director of Corporate Governance advised the Board that amendments had been requested by the Executive Director of Public Health (EDPH) offline which would be picked up.

The Board resolved that:

a) The minutes of the Public Board meeting held on 16 December 2021 were approved as a true and accurate record pending amendments required by the EDPH

	

	UHB 22/01/005
	Action Log 16th December 2021

It was noted that all actions on the Action Log were completed.

The Board resolved that:

a) The Action Log was received and noted. 

	

	UHB 22/01/006
	Patient Story

Due to IT difficulties, the Patient story was not shared during the meeting.

The Patient Story would be sent to all Board members via email and uploaded onto the Health Board’s website.

The Board resolved that:

a) The Patient Story would be sent to all Board members via email and uploaded onto the Health Board’s website.

	

	UHB 22/01/007
	Chair’s Report and Chair’s Action taken since last meeting

The Chair’s Report and Chair’s Actions taken since the last meeting were received.

The UHB Chair advised the Board that there were 3 main parts to the report which included:

· Chair’s Appraisal 2020-21

The Board was advised of the outcome of the UHB Chair’s appraisal with the Minister for 2021. 

It was noted that he regarded the appraisal as a reflection of the Board and the Health Board overall and that comments by the Minister had been positive.

The UHB Chair thanked members of the Board for the large amount of work undertaken over the past year and, in particular Executive colleagues who had been determined to make things better for patients and staff.

· Dental Directorate – Surgery Clinical Board

The UHB Chair advised the Board that the Dental Directorate and in particular, the Dental hospital, had faced considerable challenges throughout the Pandemic and that it had come through it remarkably well.

He thanked the staff for their incredible hard work over the last 12 months. 

· Chair’s Actions and Sealing of Documents.

The UHC Chair asked Board members if they were happy to approve the documents that had been received.

All Board members were happy to approve the documents. 

The Independent Member – Third Sector (IMTS) thanked the UHB Chair for the reports and noted that in relation to the Dental Directorate information, there was a link between poor dental health and deprivation and the strategic aims of the Health Board.  She asked if more of an insight could be provided in the future in relation to who has been negatively impacted by the issues raised. 

The Interim Chief Operating Officer (ICOO) responded that the Dental Directorate had been significantly impacted by Covid-19 and, in particular, the Infection Prevention and Control (IP&C) constraints within Dental procedures. 

It was noted that the Dental Directorate formed a large part of the Health Board’s recovery plan and that the Directorate had begun to see some improvements. 

The ICOO advised the Board that a more detailed report on the Dental Directorate could be provided to one of the Committees of the Board. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The Chair’s report was noted.

b) The Chair’s Actions undertaken during the period were approved.

	




























































CB

	UHB 22/01/008
	Interim Chief Executive Report

The Interim Chief Executive Report was received.

The DCEO advised the Board that she would take the report as read and noted that it had highlighted some of the incredible work being undertaken by Cardiff and Vale University Health Board (the Health Board) and had showed the breadth of the work being carried out from Reseach right the way up to Primary Care.

A number of areas were highlighted for importance to the Board which included:

· Celebrating HMP Cardiff’s Healthcare Success

The DCEO advised the Board that Her Majesty’s Prison (HMP) Cardiff’s Healthcare team was commended at the HMP Cardiff Awards with Senior Nurse, Karen Mills, securing the coveted High Sheriff’s Award which recognised the exceptional work of prison staff.

· New Optometry service for homeless citizens in Cardiff and Vale University Health Board

The Board was advised that the first Optometry service for homeless citizens took place on Friday 19 November 2021 in Cardiff.

It was noted that the service had highlighted the excellent collaboration between (i) the Optometrists who had provided their expertise and time, (ii) a supplier who had provided the spectacles, (iii) the Health Board for the provision of the equipment and clinic space, (iv) Cardiff City Council for the provision of the premises and (v) the South East Locality Team which had provided the essential collaborative links. It was noted that Clinical sessions would be organised on a regular basis to meet the local demand.

· Executive Team Changes

The Board was advised that Caroline Bird had stepped into the role of interim Chief Operating Officer (ICOO) and it was noted that the work being undertaken already by the ICOO was apparent and welcomed. 

· Sustainability Action Plan 

The DCEO advised that the Board had previously received the Action Plan and that the Communications team had now produced an animation that brought that plan to life. 

It was noted that the animation would be circulated to Board members.

The Independent Member – Capital & Estates advised the Board that she had viewed the Sustainability Plan animation on social media and highlighted how effective it had been. 

She asked if there was a Committee of the Board that focused upon the Sustainability agenda.

The DCEO responded it was a very important agenda item for the Health Board and that it was proposed that a programme board would be set up to consider the Sustainabilty agenda.  Further, that the Strategy and Delivery Committee would receive detailed oversight in terms of the delivery of the action plan. 

The Independent Member – Community asked if the number of Health Board staff who had been vaccinated against Covid-19 was known.

The EDPH responded that there had been a very good uptake of the vaccination from Health Board staff and that could be viewed via the Public Health Wales dashboard. 

It was noted that for Health Care workers (which included non-Health Board staff such as Local Authority care staff), 98.1% of them had received the first dose of the vaccine, 97.1% had received the second dose, and 89.5% had received their booster vaccine.

The Independent Member for Local Authority (IMLA) also added that there had been a very high rate of vaccinations amongst care staff (both internal and external staff).

The Board resolved that:

a) The Interim Chief Executive’s report was noted.

	

	UHB 22/01/009
	System Resilience Briefing (Covid & Non-Covid).

The System Resilience Briefing (Covid & Non-Covid) was received.

Workforce section

The Executive Director of People and Culture (EDPC) advised the Board that the workforce agenda was in collaboration with other professional leads including the Executive Director of Nursing (END), the EDPH and the Interim Medical Director (IMD).

It was noted that it was important to have a forward looking plan and that would be raised under the People and Culture Plan (an item later on the agenda) which would provide assurance to the Board. 

It was noted that the Health Board had identified a high sickness rate and, when overlaid with Covid isolations and shielding, it was very high in certain areas (up to 19%).

Operational section.

The ICOO advised the Board that the Health Board remained under operational pressures across Primary Care, Community Care, Mental Health within the Hospital, and the wider system. 

Those pressures were resulting in delays across the system which had led to poor patient experience.

The ICOO offered her apologies to the members of the public who had experienced delays.

Thanks were offered to all Health Board staff who had been working under some extreme pressures throughout the Pandemic. 

It was noted that since the paper had been written, the Covid-19 position had improved within the hospitals, with a lower number of patients in the hospital settings. 

It was noted that the Mental Health position had also improved and that the wards had now re-opened and staff had returned. 

The ICOO advised the Board that “within hospital” was still challenging, but noted that the reducion in Covid numbers had allowed a rebalancing of capacity.

It was noted that some escalation work regarding the repatriation of patients was required.

Good examples of work were identified by the ICOO which had included:

· Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) – The service would start in March 2022. 
· Admission avoidance schemes. 

Public Health section.

The EDPH advised the Board of the Covid-19 headlines which included:

· The Covid situation was a mixed picture at the moment.– The peak had been identified at the end of 2021.
· Whilst numbers of Covid cases had come down to around 500 a day in Cardiff and the Vale, numbers were currently at 800 – 1000 and the under 25s population was driving that increase.
· Track and Trace arrangements were still in place and in a prioritised way across some settings.
· [bookmark: _Hlk95398520]There were Covid-19 instances within care homes and it was noted that quite often it was the staff driving those numbers. 

The EDPH advised the Board of the Mass Vaccination headlines which included:

· 80% of those over 18 have received a booster. 
· Wales was the first place within Europe to commence the vaccination of 5-11 year olds. 
· Flu vaccination was ongoing and it was noted that some areas in Europe were seeing a rise of flu cases and so there was a final push with particular groups where rates were lower than they should be. 

The DCEO advised the Board that she had attended the Chief Executives meeting earlier that week and noted that the Health Minister had offered her thanks to NHS staff for:-

· The fantastic achievement with the vaccination booster programme; and
· The great efforts staff had made in relation to the recovery of planned care during the Christmas period. 

Quality, Safety and Experience section.

The END advised the Board that they should not underestimate the pressure that the Health Board staff was under. 

It was noted that 20% of the Registered Nurse workforce were absent and 20% of Health Care Support Workers were absent.  That was in addition to the gaps that had already been identified (700 WTE) as the Health Board tried to deliver in a greater footprint than it had seen before. 

The END advised the Board that the Pandemic would continue to impact Health Board staff for a prolonged period of time. 

It was noted that the Health Board had started to receive complaints regarding the quality of care as opposed to unsafe care, although staff were doing the best they could to address those issues. 

The Executive Director of Therapies and Health Sciences (EDTHS) advised the Board that the Long Covid Service had been evaluated and that the Health Board had the second largest number of patients in Wales referred to that service.

It was noted that the Health Minister was due to make an announcement regarding Long Covid.

The Vice Chair of the UHB referred to the Health and Wellbeing of Staff section of the report and noted that Board members would have heard the details regarding the murder of Professor Gary Jenkins via the press and asked that staff, who had worked with him, should be offered appropriate help and support. 

The Independent Member – ICT (IMICT) recognised that poor patient experience was understandable given the staffing pressures, and he asked for a sense of scale regarding that.  That was, how did poor patient experience translate into outcomes.

The END responded that incidents were occuring that would not usually be seen in areas such as the Emergency Unit.  She added that some of those outcomes may not manifest for a long time. The END gave the example of pressure damage and commented that a further report regarding the same was due to be taken to the Quality, Safety and Experience Committee.

The END commented that Board members had previously been informed of some issues regarding maternity cases and she added that all incidents were being investigated.

It was noted that in relation to more general quality issues, those had related to patient experience and the long delays that were being seen by patients. 

It was noted that overall, patient feedback remained very positive, although the number of complaints was rising. 

The Independent Member – University (IMU) asked how significant the increase in turnover of staff was and what was being done to address those increases.

The EDPC responded that it was particualrly worrying and it was a trend that they did not want to see rising. 

It was noted that the Workforce team was looking to carry out some “deep dives” on all of these areas and that the EDPC would report back to the Board in more detail. 

She added that some staff were leaving because they were physically exhausted from Covid and noted that in those instances Workforce were encouraging those members of staff to be redeployed. 

The EDPC advised the Board that there would be a lot of wellbeing intervention in February 2022, which  included a tool called “winning temp”.  That should provide a sense of how nurses felt on a weekly basis.

The IMLA advised the Board that in her role as Councillor she was interested in to hear more in relation to vaccinations and outbreaks of Covid in care homes. She asked for a conversation with the EDPH outside of the meeting around those areas. 

The Independent Member – Community (IMC) advised the Board that a very clear link was identified between staff wellbeing and patient experience and noted that it should be considered regularly by the Board and asked if anything was being done currently to address staff wellbeing. 

The EDPC responded that the IMC was correct and that evidence had showed that if staff were not happy, that could impact upon patient experience. 

She added that before the Pandemic there had been a gap in the establishment which needed to be addressed.  The new People and Culture plan should address some of the issues.

The Independent Member – Third Sector (IMTS) advised the Board that the work identified in relation to Primary Care and Community services was very wecome and asked what was being done in the long term.

She added that at some point it would be useful for Board to be updated with regards to Cluster development.  

The DCEO responded that for the first time, Cluster plans were being drawn into the IMTP and that the same would be looked at in more detail at a Board Development session.
  
The Board resolved that:

a) The Systems Resilience Briefing Report (COVID and Non COVID) was noted.

	



















































































































































RW























RG















FK


























AH

	UHB 22/01/010
	Draft IMTP Update (Verbal)

The draft IMTP update was received.

The DCEO advised the Board that a number of important things had happened since Board was last updated which included:

· The financial allocation had been received into the Health Board.
· Clarification had been provided on the Minsiter’s priority measures. 

It was noted that the Welsh Government (WG) had extended the timeline for two reasons, namely:

· The need to work through the allocation of the Ministerial priorities; and
· The pressures which has arisen from the Omicron wave of Covid-19 and the focus upon operational resilience. 

It was noted that the IMTP would be submitted to WG on 31st March 2022 and that draft version would be received by the Board in February 2022.

The DCEO advised the Board that the IMTP would be described in three ways.  That was:

· The requirement to remain resilient and responsive in light of Covid19;
· Financial Allocation and the ability to balance expectations; and
· Cluster plans linkage. 

It was noted that it was important to highlight the impact upon children and young people via the joint work with the Local Authorities. 

The DCEO concluded that next year would be an important year because the area plan and wellbeing plan would be refreshed with the Regional Partnership Board and the Population Needs Assessment would be submitted and those should inform the Health Board’s planning. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The draft IMTP Update was noted.

	

	UHB 22/01/011
	Emergency Ambulance Services Committee Update

The Emergency Ambulance Services Committee Update was received.

The Chair of the Emergency Ambulance Service Committee (CEASC) advised the Board they commissioned a number of services which included:

· Emergency Ambulance Services (EMS)
· Non-Emergency Patient Transport Services (NEPTS)
· Emergency Medical Retrieval and Transfer Service (EMRTS Cymru)

The CEASC advised the Board that the Health Minister had identified an explicit objective which required EASC’s involvement and support to the 6 goals of urgent and emergency care. 

The Chief Ambulance Services Commissioner (CASC) advised the Board that the EASC commissioned services on behalf of the Health Board and noted that in terms of the EASC, priorities were listed along with outcomes. 

It was noted that a capacity review was a key priortiy within the commissioning intentions for the EMS.

The CASC summarised the priorities and outcomes for the NEPTS which included:

· Consolidate and build confidence in the plurality delivery model – completion of the Ministerial commitment to modernise NEPTS.

· Understand and mitigate demand – reduction in overall demand and a more efficient and effective transport service for patients. 

· Modernise and transform capacity – increase and diversification in capacity to meet the changes in patient demand.

The CASC summarised the priorities and outcomes for the EMRTS which included:

· Consolidate and complete the service expansion – by enhancing the EMRTS 24/7 provision across Wales.

· Deliver a critical care transfer service for Wales – by providing a dedicated critical care transfer service across the whole of Wales for the first time.

It was noted that activity had been fairly flat over the past 12 months and that there was a response time target of 65% and that Cardiff and the Vale had reached 70% over the 12 month period.

It was noted that amber response required work and that the mean average response was 1 hour and 30 minutes.

It was noted that since April 2020 to December 2021, the number of aborted NEPTS journeys had increased from circa  25,000 to around 45,000.

It was noted that the WAST could activate their Demand Management Plan (DMP) which meant that WAST would be saying to the Health Board “We do not have the resources to go to that category of patient” which was a growing risk in the system.

The CASC advised the Board that the Ambulance Performance Activity (Amber) was poor and improvements were required and noted that with the investment that the Health Board had made towards EASC in terms of additional resources and the requirement that EASC had made at WAST to improve their rostas, it would be important to use that additional capacity to target the amber performance and get greater resilience there.

The CASC added that the amount of vehicles being turned around in 1 hour had dipped over the past few months due to system pressures. 

It was noted that WAST’s future ambitions were being supported by a task force to help advise how EASC could start to turn it around in a positive way. 

It was noted that it was important to strenghten the links with Chief Operating Officers and Directors of Planning. 

The CASC concluded the presentation and outlined the key issues and opportunities which included:

· Opportunities for ambulance staff to directly access alternative routes of care (SDEC, Community Services, Rapid Access Clinics).

· Remote support for ambulance staff via Consultant Connect.

· Handover Improvement – CVUHB plan required. 

The IMLA asked if working alongside Local Authories was something that could be expanded upon to relieve pressures from WAST.  She provided the example of the Local Authority Mobile Wardens who attended scenes when somebody had fallen and how that had avoided ambulance costs.

The CASC responded that it was a good idea and that it was definitely an area that would be considerd.  He also noted that other non-emergency areas, such as blocked catheters, could be considered.

The Independent Member – Legal asked how everything worked in relation to the geography of Wales in light of the vast rural areas of Wales in contrast with the more populated, such as the South East. 

The CASC responded that WAST was a Trust, not a “Service” and noted that there was no single way of delivering ambulances across Wales because ultimately it would always vary given various factors, such as those identified by the IML.

It was noted that learning should be taken from best practice and as mentioned previously, finding the balance to strike between locally and nationally which was why outcomes were such a focus for EASC.

The CASC added that at times there was not enough ambulance capacity to meet demand and from EASC’s point of view that meant two things, namely:

· Efficiencies needed to be created in the Cardiff and Vale system, such as looking at handover hours lost and looking closely at WAST data to adjust their rostas.
· Looking at any inefficiencies in processes and procedures to identify points to improve upon.

It was noted that WG had made monies available for a patient transfer service and wise investment would be required. 

The Chief Officer of the Community Health Council (COCHC) asked how EASC were going to work with the public so that they would understand the changes in dynamics that WAST and the Health Boards were suggesting and what would happen if the public came back and noted that they did not want the changes.

The CASC responded that the earlier the public were involved in any proposals the better, and that if the alternative was not a suitable, reasonable or better alternative then the public would not accept the changes and so EASC would need to ensure that the plans in place did meet the public’s expectations.

The Vice Chair of the UHB noted that demand often exceeded capacity and asked to what extent EASC were picking up the inappropriate demand and entering the area of urgent care as opposed to emergency care.

The CASC responded that there was a lot of repeat demand in the system with people presenting in multiple parts of the system and noted that there were opportunities around those particular patients.

He added that the inappropriate demands came back to access and how patients could access the service because often they could be dialling 999 because they could not get through to anywhere else. 

The UHB Chair concluded that further conversations could be had offline to discuss how the Health Board could work together along with the 6 identified goals. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The Emergency Ambulance Services Committee Update was noted.

	





































































































































































































CB

	UHB 22/01/012
	Board Assurance Framework

The Board Assurance Framework was received.

The Director of Corporate Governance (DCG) advised the Board of the changes made to the Board Assurance Framework (BAF)

It was noted that the ten risks to the Strategic Objectives had remained the same.  Those were:

· Workforce 
· Financial sustainability 
· Sustainable Primary and Community Care 
· Patient Safety 
· Sustainable Culture Change 
· Capital Assets 
· Inadequate Planned Care Capacity 
· Delivery of Annual Plan 
· Staff Wellbeing 
· Exacerbation of Health Inequalities in Cardiff and Vale.

It was noted that the three highest risks were Patient Safety, Workforce and Capital Programme which aligned with discussions had at Board.

The DCEO advised the Board that the capital allocation which the Health Board had been made aware of was a significant reduction and so the All Wales Capital programme for major capital schemes and discretionary capital was a shrinking pot.

The Executive Director of Finance (EDF) advised the Board that the future finances for Capital were relevant and a big issue for the Board. 

She added that the Health Board had received £58million for 2021/22 and dedicated recovery monies as well as slippage money which went on IM&T and Medical Equipment.

It was noted that although the future was looking difficult, the Health Board had gained and deployed a lot of assets in 2021/22 which would help with the issues raised around patient safety and workforce.

The DCG conlcuded that each Executive Director was a lead for each risk and noted that they met with her each month prior to the Board meeting to discuss their individual BAF risks.

The Board resolved that:

a) The 10 risks to the delivery of Strategic Objectives detailed on the attached BAF for January 2021 were approved.
b) The removal of the Financial Sustainability risk for the financial year 21/22 having reached its target risk score was approved.
c) The continuing progress which had been made in relation to the roll out and delivery of effective risk management systems and processes at Cardiff and Vale UHB was noted.

	

	UHB 22/01/013
	Integrated Performance Report

The Integrated Performance Report was received. 

Finance

The EDF advised the Board that at the end of November 2021 and the end of December 2021 there was a small surplus and a forecast of breaking even had been given.

It was noted that the most significant risk was that the Health Board was managing to achieve the savings this year, but there was a shortfall on the recurrent element of £4.4million which could hinder the underlying deficit. 

It was noted that there was a “back loaded” Capital programme and the Health Board was endeavouring to meet the public sector payment policy.

People and Culture

The EDPC advised the Board that 2 workforce hubs had been created to help manage workforce in certain areas.

It was noted that an internal workforce team had been able to accelerate workforce applications into the mass vaccination service. 

It was noted that the workforce for the whole system approach would be considered.

Quality & Safety

The END advised the Board that some of the incidents identified in the report related to Covid-19, but she highlighted that the top 2 cases of incidents related to falls and pressure damage.

It was noted that the Quality, Safety and Experience Committee had received the information regarding that and it had been discussed in detail at that Committee.

It was noted that another area which required focus was hospital acquired infections in the broader context. 

The END added that C-diff infection was going in the wrong direction and noted that a lot of the cases had involved antimicrobial prescribing. 

She added that the patient experience position continued to be maintained positively and the response to complaints remained positive. 

The IML asked the END how often the pressure damage collaborative met to ensure that it was making improvements.

The END responded that the collaborative was led by the Director of Nursing for the Surgical Clinical Board and that it met monthly to provide clear objectives.

She added that the group had aimed to reduce pressure acquired damage by 25% by July 2022.

Performance

The ICOO advised the Board that the impact of the operational position could be seen in 2 areas:

· Planned care – it was noted that recovery had been doing well and a growth had been seen in core activity. 
It was noted that much needed capacity was coming into the system over the next few months. It was noted that external support had been secured for key diagnostic areas where particular staffing issues had been seen.

· Mental Health – it was noted that referrals remained significantly higher than pre-Covid. 
It was noted that the CAMHS performance for November and December 2021 had hit compliance at 85% in November and over 90% in December. 
The ICOO advised the Board that CAMHS had been impacted by high staff absence in January 2022.


Public Health

The EDPC advised the Board that statistics and data would be provided on the next Integrated Performance Report 

The Board resolved that:

a) The contents of the integrated report were noted.

	 

	UHB 22/01/014
	Stroke Performance

The Stroke Performance was received. 

The ICOO advised the Board that compliance against stroke measures had been identified at two Committees of the Board:

· Strategy and Delivery Committee
· Quality, Safety and Experience Committee.

It was noted that the stroke performance had been considered in more detail by the Strategy and Delivery Committee and noted that it was another service that had been significantly impacted upon by Covid-19 and, more recently, by the wider pressures that were being seen across the Health Board.

The ICOO advised the Board that stroke performance was a priority for the Operational team and that the report highlighted improvement actions and timescales. 

It was noted that Acute Stroke Services would form a key part of the IMTP for 2022/23, with a dedicated scheme to support the provision of seven day working prior to the delivery of a Hyper Acute Stroke Unit (HASU) in 2023/24.

The EDTHS advised the Board that the Health Board and Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB would work together as the first stroke network in Wales and noted that the Medicine Clinical Board were leading on that.

The UHB Chair noted that he was encouraged that 2 Committees of the Board had raised the stroke performance issue.  

The Independent Member – University (IMU) thanked the Executive colleagues for the creation of the report, the additional context and valuable explanation of the local contributing factors, as well as the national perspective of stroke performance. 

The COCHC noted that the report did not contain any details with regards to the onward support for stroke patients, particulary when they left hospital.

The EDTHS responded that “life after stroke” was a key part of the proposed pathway and that both Health Boards had an early supportive discharge service.

The Vice Chair of the UHB asked if there were any risks to the HASU given the restraints on capital. 

The EDTHS responded that the model should give the Health Board and patients the best outcomes and that the biggest constraint was staffing. 

She added that a HASU required 24/7 stroke consultants and that there were not enough in Wales and not enough training within the UK. She added that by working across boundaries, more staff could be utilised.

The Board resolved that:

a) The current compliance against the stroke quality improvement measures, contributory factors to the deterioration in performance and agreed improvement actions, were noted.

b) An improvement trajectory would be worked through and presented to the March 2022 Strategy and Delivery Committee meeting, was noted.

c) It was noted that Stroke remained a priority both locally and regionally and would form a key element of the Health Board’s Integrated Medium-Term Plan.

	

	UHB 22/01/015
	Audit & Assurance Arrangements 

The Audit & Assurance Arrangements were received. 

The DCG advised the Board that she would take the report as read and highlighted that the Audit and Assurance arrangements should be provided to the Board annually.  The report detailed the current audit and assurance arrangements held by the Health Board.

The Board resolved that:

a) The arrangements in place for Audit and Assurance as set out in the report were approved.

	

	UHB 22/01/016
	People & Culture Plan (People and Culture Strategy including Equality)

The People & Culture Plan (People and Culture Strategy including Equality) was received.

The EDPC advised the Board that she was pleased to present the report to them and noted that actions within the report had already commenced. It was noted that the plan was:

· Aligned to the Shaping Our Future Wellbeing, A Healthier Wales: workforce strategy for health and social care & IMTP (longer term, transformational) but also Winter Plan, Recovery Plan.

· A high-level published plan setting out ambitions and key enablers, supported behind the scenes by a series of objectives and actions.

· There were 7 themes – working in partnership to develop objectives.

· The plan should be seen in context of the current workforce and where the Health Board needed to move to.

Theme 1: Seamless Workforce Models

The EDPC advised the Board that the ambition was to provide holistic, person centred and seamless health and care to the Cardiff and Vale population through a skilled, motivated, health and integrated workforce.  

Key objectives for theme 1 were identified.

Theme 2: Engaged, Motivated and Healthy Workforce

It was noted that the ambition was to have a workforce that felt valued and supported wherever they worked.

Key objectives for theme 2 were identified.

Theme 3: Attract, Recruit and Retain.

It was noted that the ambition was to attract, recruit and retain high quality and diverse candidates to work at the Health Board.

Key objectives for theme 3 were identified.
 
Theme 4: Digitally Ready Workforce

It was noted that the ambition was to have a workforce that was digitally ready and one which had both the technology available and skills to utilise effectively.

Key objectives for theme 4 were identified.

Theme 5: Excellent Education and Learning

It was noted that the ambition was to invest in education and learning to deliver the skills and capabilities needed to meet the future needs of the people the Health Board cared for. 

Key objectives for theme 5 were identified.

Theme 6: Leadership and Succession.

It was noted that the ambition was to help leaders display collective and compassionate leadership.

Key objectives for theme 6 were identified.

Theme 7: Workforce Supply and Shape

It was noted that the ambition was to have a sustainable workforce in sufficient numbers to meet the health and social care needs of the population. 

Key objectives for theme 7 were identified.

The Independent Member – Trade Union (IMTU) thanked the EDPC for the presentation and noted that staff wellbeing should clearly improve under the plan.

The Vice Chair of the UHB asked how the EDPC would ensure delivery of the culture part of the plan as well as the people part.

The EDPC responded that the Board and Executives could not have complete ownership of the plan and that it needed to be given to all staff to empower them to own it. 

She added that Heads of Workforce and Organisational Development had been to each Clinical Board and noted that each Director of Operations had noted that a People and Culture plan would be required under the IMTP. 

The DCEO advised the Board that the IMTP would drive out the key actions for years 1, 2 and 3 and had linked to the longer-term transformation. 

The Director of Social Service, Vale of Glamorgan Council (DSSVGC) advised the Board that the work of the Social Care Regional Workforce Board, which sat under the RPB, had been greatly improved with input from the Health Board.  

The Board resolved that:

a) the draft People and Culture Plan 2022-25 was approved.

	

	UHB 22/01/017
	Recruitment of Overseas Nurses

The Recruitment of Overseas Nurses Campaign paper was received.

The EDPC advised the Board that the current climate had created a shortage of candidates with the right skills, abilities and experience in many professions and that had created a more competitive market. 

It was noted that the ability to deliver high quality, compassionate care was dependent upon recruiting and retaining the right people with the right skills.  

It was noted that over the past few years the Health Board had successfully recruited and retained over 200 overseas nurses and there were a further 90 nurses to arrive following approval by the Board last September.

The Assistant Director of Workforce Resourcing (ADWR) provided the Board with a brief overview of the overseas nursing recruitment. 

It was noted that WG were undertaking an all Wales overseas recruitment initiative to recruit 400 nurses for the whole of Wales.

It was noted that the current vacancy position for Bands 5 and 6 Nurses across the Health Board was 322 and that turnover was 11.15% and sickness absence was 8.3%.  

The ADWR advised the Board that the paper had been received by the Management Executives earlier that week for approval.  The purpose of the paper was to request formal Board approval to recruit a further 135 registered nurses from overseas as part of the All Wales recruitment campaign. 

He added that it was the intention to start interviewing suitable candidates within 2 weeks and to make appointments prior to the end of the financial year to ensure that the initiative would be funded through slippage monies.

The IMCE noted that the Health Board followed a very strict code of conduct of where nurses were recruited from and asked how successful the Health Board were on retaining overseas nurses and what support was provided. 

The EDPC responded that assurance could be given that there were countries where nurses were not recruited from (due to their own low numbers of nurses) and noted that countries, such as the Philippines, purposely oversubscribed training specifically to export to Europe. 

She added that pastoral support and accommodation was provided to overseas nurses. 

The ADWR advised the Board that there was a turnover rate of around 8% and noted that the data was being looked into.  

The Divisional Nurse for the Specialist Services (DNSS) advised the Board that the Health Board had been recruiting overseas nurses since 2018 and that in that time, 2 nurses had left. 

She added that, in terms of retention, the nurses came to Cardiff and the Vale and had developed communities. 

The IMTU advised the Board that in the paper it stated that there was a cost of £10,000 per nurse and asked if there was scope to take that back if the nurses did not stay.

The DNSS responded that the £10,000 covered agency fees, accommodation and visas and that their contracts stated that they were tied into the Health Board for 3 years. 

It was noted that if they were to leave, the costs would be reclaimed on a sliding scale.  

The END advised the Board that although the nurses being recruited were registered in their own country they still had a lot of work to do, when they arrived, in order to obtain the relevant skills. 

The EDPC concluded that it was a timely piece of work alongside the People and Culture plan and noted that once the nurses arrived, the term “Overseas” was no longer required. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The proposed recruitment of 135 overseas nurses was approved.

b) The associated budget of £1.35 million and associated supernumerary costs of around £4,400 per nurse as set out in the body of the report, were approved.

	

	UHB 22/01/018
	Corporate Risk Register.

The Corporate Risk Register was received.

The DCG advised the Board she would take the report as read and highlighted that the risks had been grouped together at the previous request of the Independent Members.

It was noted that most of the risks related to patient safety, closely followed by planned care capacity. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The Corporate Risk Register and the work which was progressing, was noted.
	

	UHB 22/01/019
	Annual consultations summary 

The Annual Consultations summary was received. 

The Board resolved that:

a) The Annual Consultations Summary was noted

	

	UHB 22/01/020
	Committee / Governance Group Minutes: 

Finance Committee – 27.10.21 & 24.11.21
Strategy & Delivery Committee – 16.11.21
Charitable Funds Committee – 21.09.21
Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee – 13.10.21
Stakeholder Reference Group – 29.09.21
Local Partnership Forum – 21.10.21 

The Board resolved that:

a) The minutes outlined within the meeting were ratified.

	

	UHB 22/01/021
	Chair’s Reports: 

The Chair’s Reports were received.

The Board resolved that:

a) The Committee Chair reports outlined within the meeting were noted.

	

	UHB 22/01/022
	Agenda for Private Board Meeting:

1. Approval of minutes
1. Draft IMTP update
1. Approval of Private Committee minutes

	

	UHB 22/01/023
	Any Other Business

Audiology Expression of Thanks

The UHB Chair advised the Board that a specific request from a patient had been recieved to thank the Audiology Department for all of their work.

The EDTHS advised the Board that the she would take the recognition back to the relevant team.

	

	UHB 22/01/024
	Review of meeting 

The UHB Chair asked if attendees were satisfied with the business discussions and the format of the meeting, and all Members indicated that they were happy with the meeting, the updates provided and the meeting format.

	

	UHB 22/01/025
	Date and Time of Next Meeting:

24 February 2022 at 9.30am Via MS Teams
	





2

